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of the r esort community tax. Sec S 7-6- 4466, MCA, where 
such an e xplicit amendment was made . 

1 conclude that in order to come within an exception to 
the general municipal debt limitation of section 
7-7-4201, MCA, the conditions of some spec~fic exception 
( SlOs, sewer :~nd water systems, revenue-producing 
facilities) must be met. Since the city's proposed 
ded~cation of gasoline tax revenues for the street 
construction project docs nv~ [all within any such 
exception, the deb t incurred by the city is subject to 
the debt limitation in section 7-7-4201, MCA. 

THEREFORE, IT IS MY OPINI ON : 

l. A city may not issue municipal revenue bonds 
which are to be retired by gasoline tax 
revenues received annually from the state 
pursuant to sect ions 7-7-4401 to 4435, MCA. 

2 . If a city contracts for street construction 
work to be paid exclusively from gasoline tax 
revenues to be received from the state, such 
indebtedness is considered part of the city's 
general debt limitation under section 
7-7-4201, MCA, unless the conditions of some 
specific exception are otherwise met. 

Very truly yours, 

MIKE GREELY 
At torney General 

VOLUME NO. 42 OPINION NO. 121 

DEEDS - Use by grantor of quitclaim deed to trans fer 
property not o~med by grantor; 
PROPERTY, REAL- Conditions requiring survey of property 
under section 76-3-401 , MCA; 
PROPERTY, REAL - Use by grantor of quitclaim deed to 
transfer property not owned by grantor; 
SURVEYORS Conditions requiring survey of property 
under section 76-3-401, MCA; 
MONTANA CODE ANNOTATED- Sections 76-3-103(3), 76-3-401 . 

HELD: Section 76-3-401, MCA, requires a survey only 
when the transfer of title involves division 
of a tract of property. Further, a grantor is 
not barred from using a quitclaim deed to 
transfer property whoRe title he does not own, 
but such action is inadvisable and subject to 
potential liability. 
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David G . R1ce 
Hill County ~ttorney 
Hill County Courthouse 
Havre ~IT 59501 

Dear Mr. Rice: 

4 November 1988 

Thank you for your letter requesting my opinion on two 
issues which I have r ephrased as follows: 

1. ls a survey required under section 
76-3-401 , MCA, for a transfPr of a parcel 
of land ~hich includes, ~ithin its 
boundaries, t~o smaller parcels of 
property not o~ned by the grantor, but 
which have been surveyed and recorded as 
a result of earlier transfers? 

2 . Can a grantor transfer by quitclaim deed 
a parcel of land which includes, within 
its boundaries, two amaller parcels of 
property which the grantor does not own? 

It i s my understanding that you are presented with a 
situation where the grantor owns a quarter-section block 
of propertv (160 acres) which has within its boundaries 
two smaller parcels (10 and 15 acres in size) that the 
grantor does not own . You expl ain that the grantor 
intends to transfer, by quitclaim deed, the entire 
160-acre tract, making no attempt to specifically 
exclude the two smaller tracts because he believes that 
a survey would be required if he were to do so. 

A survey is not required under the described 
circumstances. Roughly paraphrased, section 76-3-401, 
MCA , requires tha t all "divisions of land for sale" into 
parcels smaller than 20 acres be surveyed. Whi le the 
two parcels at issue here are smaller than 20 acres, the 
transaction, as it affects them, is not a "division o{ 
land." A "division of land " is defined in section 
7E-3-103 ( 3) , MC~, as 

the segregation of one or more parcels of land 
from a larger tract held in single or 
undivided ownership by transferring or 
contracting to transfer title to or possession 
of a portion of the tract or properly filing a 
certificate of survey or subdivision plat 
establishing the identity of the segregated 
parcels pursuant to this chapter. 
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'!'he two smaller parcels of property not owned by the 
grantor "'hich are with1n tl>e grantor's property lines 
were seqregated from the larger tract before the 
transaction at issue here , as evidenced by the 
certificate of survey filed for the one parcel and the 
recording date (or the second. Hence, the two smaller 
tracts were already created and, as such, are not a 
"division of land" requiring a sur vey under 
section 76-3-401, MCA. In other words, a survey is only 
required when a single tract of l and is divided , 
creating several tracts. No division occurs as a result 
of the transaction contemplat ed in your request, 
there fore no survey is required. 

Your second question .is whether the grantor may transfer 
by quitclaim deed the entire parcel of property, even 
though it includes two smaller parcels within its 
boundaries which the grantor does not own. A quitclaim 
deed passes to the buyer all those rights or as much of 
a title as the seller actually has. A quitclaim deed 
does not warrant that the seller actually has fu :l title 
of the land to pass on. See 23 Am. Jur. 2d S 338. In 
sum, the distinguishing c""liilracteristic of a qui t claim 
deed is that it conveys the interest or title of the 
grantor in and to the property described, rather than 
the property itself . See 23 Am. Jur . 2d S 259. 

While the grantor in this case is not precluded trom 
using a quitcla im deed to transfer his block of 
property, e xpans i vely including the t wo tracts he does 
not own ill his description of the property, such action 
would be inadvisable and subject to potential liability. 
Obviously , rather than create unnecessary difficulties 
for the buyers of his tract and the owners of the two 
smaller parcels, the grantor should merely describe the 
property in a manner ...,hich e xcludes the two smaller 
parcels from his drcd . 

THEREFORE, IT IS MY OPINION : 

Section 76-3-401, MCA, requires a survey only when 
the transfer of title involves division of a tract 
of property. Further, a grantor is not barred from 
using a quitclaim deed to transfer property whose 
title he does not own, but such action is 
inadvisable and subject to potential liability. 

Very truly yours, 

MIKE GREEI.Y 
Attorney Gener al 

4 78 




